

# **LIONS CLUBS INTERNATIONAL**

**MULTIPLE DISTRICT 40**

**CONSTITUTION & BY-LAWS**

**REVISED 4 May 2019**

# CONSTITUTION

## ARTICLE I NAME

SECTION 1. This organization shall be known as MULTIPLE DISTRICT 40, Lions Clubs International, hereafter referred to as “Multiple District.”

## ARTICLE II OBJECTS

SECTION 1. To provide this Multiple District with an efficient organization, headed by International's Representatives (i.e., the District Governors in the Multiple District) for the express purpose of advancing Lionism and providing proper administration throughout the Multiple District.

## ARTICLE III MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1. The membership of this organization shall consist of all Lions Clubs in the Multiple District duly chartered by Lions Clubs International and in good standing.

SECTION 2. This Multiple District shall consist of two Districts, the boundary lines of which are set by the vote of certified delegates at a Multiple District Convention. The Districts, as of the date of adoption of this constitution, are:

### DISTRICT 40 NORTH

All the territory of the State of New Mexico north of Highway US 60, but including Highway US 60, and also including Portales and Floyd, New Mexico, and Window Rock-Fort Defiance, Arizona.

### DISTRICT 40 SOUTH

All the territory of the State of New Mexico south of Highway US 60, except Portales and Floyd, New Mexico.

## ARTICLE IV MULTIPLE DISTRICT COUNCIL

SECTION 1. There shall be a Multiple District Council (hereafter referred to as “Council”) composed of the District Governors and the Council Chairperson, each having the right to vote on matters brought before the Council. The 1<sup>st</sup> and 2<sup>nd</sup> Vice District Governors from each District shall serve the Council in an advisory capacity but will not have voting privileges.

SECTION 2. The Council Chairperson shall be the Presiding Officer of the Council. The Council Chairperson shall be a Past District Governor and an active member in good standing of a chartered Lions Club in MD40 who is in good standing in his/her District. In the event that the Council Chairperson cannot continue or complete his/her term in office for any reason, a new chairperson shall be elected by the current Council. The chairperson shall be elected from the ranks of the Past District Governors residing in the Multiple District.

SECTION 3. The Council Chairperson shall appoint the Council Secretary//Treasurer who shall be a past District Governor or a past District Cabinet Secretary//Treasurer and is in good standing in his/her chartered Lions Club in MD40 that is in good standing with their District. In the event the Council Chairperson is replaced, for any reason, the current Council Secretary-Treasurer will continue in office. Should the Council Secretary Treasurer not complete his/her term for any reason, the Council Chairperson shall appoint a replacement.

SECTION 4. If sufficient funds are available, the Council may authorize payment to its members, who are not otherwise reimbursed, to cover all or part of the expense of attending Council meetings. The Multiple District Global Leadership Development Team Coordinator and the Multiple District

Global Membership Development Team Coordinator may be reimbursed for carrying out their assigned responsibilities if funds are available and the Council of Governors approves.

SECTION 5. A majority of the members of the Council shall constitute a quorum providing each District is represented.

SECTION 6. The Council Chairperson shall call the first meeting of the Council within sixty (60) days after the date on which the District Governors take office (i.e., the last day of the International Convention). The main purpose of this meeting shall be to make plans for the effective operation of the Council (which shall include presenting a budget for Council approval) during the year to the end that Lionism shall be promoted throughout the Multiple District. Subsequent meetings of the Council shall be held at such times and places as are deemed advisable. At the first meeting of the Council, there shall be presented the recommendation by the Convention Host Club(s) as to the dates of the next Multiple District Convention. Such recommendations shall be in accordance with Article IX Section 1 District, (Single, Sub, and Multiple) Conventions of the Constitution and By Laws of the International Association of Lions Clubs (A Convention shall be held annually by each District which shall conclude no less than 30 days prior to the convening date of the annual International Convention. The Multiple District shall hold an annual Convention which shall conclude no less than 15 days prior to the convening date of the International Convention. Each District shall elect a District Governor as provided in these Bylaws or Constitution. A meeting of the delegation of a District at a Multiple District Convention may be considered as a Convention of such District, if it meets the other requirements of this section. The time and place of all such Conventions shall be determined by the provisions of this constitution as applicable.)

SECTION 7. Except where inconsistent with and contrary to the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and Constitution and By-Laws of the International Association of Lions Clubs, the powers granted therein to the Board of Directors of said Association, and policies and acts of said Board of Directors, the Council shall:

- a. Have jurisdiction and control over all officers and agents, when acting as such, of the Council and all committees of the Multiple District and the Multiple District Convention;
- b. Have management and control over the property, business, and funds of the Multiple District. No officer, agent, or committee shall obligate funds without prior approval of the Council for the amount to be incurred;
- c. Have jurisdiction, control and supervision over all phases of the Multiple District Convention and all other meetings of the Multiple District;
- d. Have original jurisdiction, when authorized under policy of said International Board and under rules of procedure prescribed by said Board, to hear and rule upon any complaint of a Constitutional nature raised by any District or Districts. All such rulings of the Council shall be subject to review and decision by said International Board;
- e. Have control and management of all budgetary matters of the Multiple District and Committees of the Multiple District and Multiple District Convention. Have control and management of all matters pertaining to the MD40 Lions Roar electronic newsletter and website ([www.nmlions.org](http://www.nmlions.org)) to include providing form 1099's to the Roar Editor and Website Webmaster for payments received. No obligation may be approved or made which shall cause a deficit in any fiscal year. The Council may allocate prior year's unexpended funds, other than the Multiple District Convention Administrative Fund and funds specifically restricted in this Constitution & By-Laws, for any proper purpose as approved by the Council.

SECTION 8. If deemed necessary, the Council Secretary-Treasurer shall be adequately bonded, the size of the bond to be fixed by the Council.

SECTION 9. The Council Secretary-Treasurer shall provide annually a comprehensive financial report of all aspects of Council business. The report will include such items as an account checkbook spreadsheet, a final budget status, and receipts for all expenditures. The report will be reviewed and certified by the Council Chair and District Governors. The certified report shall be posted on the Multiple District website.

#### ARTICLE V MULTIPLE DISTRICT CONVENTION

SECTION 1. An annual Convention of this Multiple District shall be held in each year prior to the International Convention at a place selected by a previous annual convention of this Multiple District and at a date and time fixed by the Council, as provided in ARTICLE IV, SECTION 6 MULTIPLE DISTRICT COUNCIL.

SECTION 2. All invitations from towns and cities desiring to entertain the Convention the second following year shall be presented in writing to the Chairperson of the Council not later than thirty (30) days before the date of the first intervening Convention. Each invitation shall be supported by a statement of the number of hotel, motel and private rooms available and the price of same, and whether adequate police protection, parking facilities and a suitable convention meeting place can be furnished without charge; and whether suitable street decorations will be furnished without charge. It shall be the duty of the Council Chairperson to investigate thoroughly the facilities available in each town or city which extends an invitation, and to certify to the intervening convention the names of all towns and cities which are ready, able, and willing to entertain the next succeeding Multiple District Convention. If no invitations have been received by the 30 day advance notice, no selection can be made at this convention. The council shall appoint a three member committee to recommend an appropriate location for approval at the next council meeting for the second following year convention.

SECTION 3. The Council shall have supervision over all phases of the Multiple District Convention, and the members of the Council shall be the Officers of the annual Multiple District Convention.

SECTION 4. The Council shall have complete charge of the Multiple District Convention Administrative Fund and shall disburse same in payment of Multiple District Convention administrative expenses as approved by the Council under ARTICLE VI, MULTIPLE DISTRICT CONVENTION FUND.

SECTION 5. Each chartered Club in the Multiple District in good standing (with no debts to LIONS CLUBS INTERNATIONAL or to their District for the past thirty (30) days) shall be entitled to one (1) voting delegate and one (1) alternate for each ten (10) members of said Club, or major fraction thereof, who have been members for at least one year and a day as shown by the records of the International Office on the first day of the month preceding that month during which the Convention is held. The major fraction referred to in this section shall be five (5) or more members. Each delegate must be a member in good standing. Each such vote based on membership shall be cast only by a delegate present in person at the Convention and no delegate shall cast more than one (1) vote on each question. In addition, each registered Past District Governor shall be entitled to vote on questions brought before the convention, except that a Past District Governor shall not vote as such, if he/she is voting as a Club delegate. Each delegate and Past District Governor shall be registered before the close of the registration on Saturday by Noon.

SECTION 6. A majority of the delegates in attendance shall constitute a quorum of the Convention.

SECTION 7. The Council shall retain, and have, absolute power to change at any time, for good and sufficient reason, the Convention site chosen by a Convention, and neither the Council nor the Multiple District nor any District or Districts shall incur any liability what-so-ever thereby to any Club or District.

#### ARTICLE VI MULTIPLE DISTRICT CONVENTION FUND

SECTION 1. A Multiple District Convention Registration Fee, the amount of which shall be fixed by the Convention Host Club(s) and approved by the Council ninety (90) days prior to the Multiple District Convention, shall be collected from each Lion, Leo or guest attending the Convention or any part thereof.

SECTION 2. In addition to the Multiple District Convention Registration Fee, there shall be an annual per capita Multiple District Convention Administrative Fund Tax of one dollar (\$1.00) levied upon each member in the District. This tax shall be paid in advance by the Clubs, except new and reorganized Clubs, in two (2) semi-annual payments of fifty cents (\$0.50) for each member on April 10 and October 10. Billings will be based on the Club membership as of March 1 and September 1, respectively, and as shown on the records of Lions Clubs International. This tax shall be collected by the Cabinet Secretary-Treasurer of each District and forwarded to the Council Secretary-Treasurer.

SECTION 3. The Council Secretary-Treasurer will forward thirty cents (\$0.30) per capita of the Multiple District Convention Administrative Fund Tax to the Convention Host Club(s) Committee prior to the date of the Convention to be used to defray expenses that must be paid prior to the Convention. The remaining seventy cents (\$0.70) per capita shall be placed in a special Multiple District Convention Administrative Fund which shall be used to defray the Convention expenses related to International guests, the Council Chairperson, transportation, gifts, etc. and for such other purposes as are approved by the Multiple District Council. Payments out of said fund shall be by check drawn and signed by the Council Secretary-Treasurer and countersigned by the Council Chairperson or an authorized Past District Governor.

SECTION 4. New and reorganized Clubs shall be billed for the Multiple District Convention Administrative Fund Tax except that any new or reorganized Club organized after January 1, of any fiscal year shall pay only the March 10, semi-annual billing for that fiscal year. Such Clubs shall be entitled to full delegate privileges at the Multiple District Convention.

SECTION 5. In the event there is a balance left in the Multiple District Convention Administrative Fund after payment of all Multiple District Convention administrative expenses, the balance shall remain in the Multiple District Convention Administrative Fund and shall be under the control of the Council of Governors.

SECTION 6. The Host Club(s) expenses shall be borne wholly by the MD40 Convention Host Club(s) and shall include such expenses as are incurred by the Host Club(s) Committees in arranging for the various entertainment features, convention hall, committee rooms, liability insurance, decorations and miscellaneous expenses incidental to the running of a convention. The Registration Fee should be sufficient to cover the cost of the barbecue or similar entertainment such as breakfasts and luncheons and the cost of the District Governor's banquet and ball. The money from this fee shall be under the supervision of the District Governor of the District where the convention is to be held. All Clubs shall be notified of the amount fixed for said Registration Fee sixty (60) days before the Multiple District Convention.

SECTION 7. Within sixty (60) days after the close of the Multiple District Convention, an official report thereof shall be mailed to Lions Clubs International and posted on the Multiple District website by the Council, or, at its direction by the Multiple District Council Secretary-Treasurer.

**ARTICLE VII MULTILE DISTRICT AND DISTRICT REVENUE**

**SECTION 1. CONVENTION ADMIN FUND TAX AND PER CAPITA TAX**

There shall be an annual per capita Multiple District Convention Administrative Fund Tax of one dollar (\$1.00) levied upon each member in the District as specified in ARTICLE VI, SECTION 2 MULTIPLE DISTRICT CONVENTION FUND, MD40 Constitution and By-Laws. In addition, to provide revenue to defray the administrative expenses of the Multiple District and District organizations, an annual Per Capita Tax of eighteen dollars and fifty cents (\$18.50) shall be levied upon each member. The Per Capita Tax plus the Convention Administrative Fund Tax (total of \$19.50 henceforth referred to as the Multiple District and District dues) shall be paid in advance by each Club in the District in two (2) semi-annual payments as follows: Nine dollars and seventy-five cents (\$9.75) per member billed on September 10, due and payable by October 10, and nine dollars and seventy-five cents (\$9.75) per member billed on March 10, due and payable by April 10, of each fiscal year, billings to be based on the membership of each Club as of the 1st day of September and March respectively. Campus Club members between the ages of legal majority and thirty (30) years of age only pay one-half the annual Multiple District and District dues. Students and Campus Club members over the age of thirty (30) will pay full Multiple District and District dues.

**SECTION 2. MULTIPLE DISTRICT 40 & DISTRICT DUES COLLECTION & DISTRIBUTION**

The Cabinet Secretary/Treasurer of each District shall collect the semi-annual dues of nine dollars and seventy-five cents (\$9.75) for each Lion from each Club in their District as specified in Section 1 of this Article. Four dollars and seventy-five cents (\$4.75) of that amount for each Lion in their District shall be provided semi-annually to the MD40 Council Secretary-Treasurer.

New and reorganized Clubs shall pay only the prorated per capita tax as of the 1st day of the second month following the date of their organization. The table below provides the distribution of the MD40 and District 40S dues.

		<b>Annually</b>	<b>Semi-Annually</b>
<b>MD40 Dues</b>	<b>MD40 Admin</b>	<b>\$3.00</b>	<b>\$1.50</b>
	<b>MD40 &amp; District GLT/GMT/GST Expenses</b>	<b>\$2.50</b>	<b>\$1.25</b>
	<b>Lions Roar &amp; Website</b>	<b>\$3.00</b>	<b>\$1.50</b>
	<b>Convention Admin Fund Tax</b>	<b>\$1.00</b>	<b>\$0.50</b>
		<b>\$9.50</b>	<b>\$4.75</b>
<b>District Dues</b>	<b>District Admin</b>	<b>\$9.00</b>	<b>\$4.50</b>
	<b>1st &amp; 2nd VDG's Expenses</b>	<b>\$1.00</b>	<b>\$0.50</b>
		<b>\$10.00</b>	<b>\$5.00</b>

Note that any monies remaining in the website and newsletter fund at the end of each fiscal year shall be transferred to the MD40 Council Admin fund. As such, the Lions in charge of the website and Lions Roar newsletter will each be issued a 1099 form at the end of the calendar year. Funds shall only be used for the purpose specified and any funds not used in the current year shall be carried over to the following year for use of same stated purpose.

## ARTICLE VIII INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION COMMITTEE

SECTION 1. There shall be an International Convention Committee consisting of the two District Governors and two Past District Governors, one representing each of the two Districts, and the Secretary-Treasurer of the Council as an exofficio member and Secretary-Treasurer of the committee. Each Past District Governor shall be appointed by the Governor of the District which he/she represents. The committee shall elect one of the Past District Governors as Chairperson. The committee shall administer any funds made available for its use by the Council. The money shall be used for the operation of the MD40 booth and/or hospitality room at the International Convention and to provide for the distribution, at the convention of materials suitable for giving favorable publicity to MD40.

## ARTICLE IX. AMENDMENTS AND RESOLUTIONS

SECTION 1. This Constitution may be amended only at a Multiple District Convention, by resolution reported by the Convention Committee on Constitution and By-Laws and adopted by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of votes cast.

SECTION 2. No amendment shall be so reported or voted upon unless the same shall have been furnished in writing to each Club no less than thirty (30) days prior to the convening date of the annual Multiple District Convention with notice that the same will be voted upon at said Convention. A proposed amendment shall be submitted by a Lions Club in good standing in the Multiple District and Lions Clubs International. The proposed amendment shall be submitted to the Multiple District Constitution and By-laws Chairperson ninety (90) days in advance of the Multiple District Convention that it is to be voted upon. The Chairperson will review for accuracy and submit to all Lions Clubs Presidents in the Multiple District no less than thirty (30) days prior to the opening date of the Multiple District Convention with notice that it will be voted upon. The submitting Lions Club and the Constitution and By-Laws Chairperson must have proof that the above dates were complied with for the proposed amendment to be considered at the convention. Published in the Lions Roar or any other Multiple District 40 Lions' document will be considered advance notice only if it meets the thirty (30) advance notice. The Multiple District Constitution and By-Laws Chairperson is responsible to verify and maintain proof that the publications are mailed in a timely manner to meet the thirty (30) day advance notice. If these communications cannot meet this advance notice then a separate notice shall be sent to each Lions Club President that does meet the advance notice requirement.

SECTION 3. Each amendment shall take effect at the close of the Convention at which adopted unless otherwise specified in the amendment.

SECTION 4. This revised constitution will become effective upon the adjournment of the 2019 Multiple District Convention or July 1, 2019, whichever date comes first.

## ARTICLE XV CONFLICT RESOLUTION

SECTION 1. If any article or section of this Constitution and By-Laws is in conflict with the International Association of Lions Clubs Constitution and By-laws, the provisions of the International Association of Lions Clubs shall prevail.

## **BY-LAWS**

### **ARTICLE I. ELECTION OF COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON**

SECTION 1. A candidate for the Council Chairperson must be a Past District Governor and an active member in good standing of a chartered Lions Club in Multiple District 40.

SECTION 2. All eligible Past District Governors that desire to be a candidate for Council Chairperson shall file their intent with the Council Chairperson sixty (60) days in advance. The Council will review for compliance and submit the names to all Lions Clubs Presidents in Multiple District 40 a minimum of thirty (30) days prior to the opening of the Multiple District Convention with notice that the delegates will elect. The candidate receiving the largest number of votes cast at the Multiple District Convention shall be declared elected. If no qualified candidates have filed an intent, then and only then, nominations from the floor would be accepted. Any candidate nominated from the floor shall meet the office requirements and agreed to be nominated.

SECTION 3. The candidates for Council Chairperson each year will alternate between the two Districts. In the case where there are no candidates from the appropriate District, a candidate from the other District can be nominated.

SECTION 4. In the event of a vacancy in the office of Council Chairperson, the same shall be filled by election by the Council from the ranks of the Past District Governors residing in the same District as the Council Chairperson who vacated the office.

### **ARTICLE II. DUTIES**

SECTION 1. COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON. Under the general supervision of the International Board of Directors, he/she shall be the administrative officer of the Multiple District. His/Her specific responsibilities shall be to:

- a. Further the Purpose and Objects of the Association;
- b. Provide leadership, direction, and initiative for International and Multiple District programs, goals, and long range planning;
- c. Create and foster harmony and unity among Districts, and assist District Governors to solve issues;
- d. Preside over the Multiple District Convention and all Council Meetings;
- e. Submit reports and perform such duties as may be required by the Multiple District Constitution and By Laws;
- f. Perform such other administrative duties as may be assigned by the Council;
- g. Facilitate, at the close of his/her term of office, timely presentation of all Multiple District accounts, funds, and records to his/her successor in office.

SECTION 2. COUNCIL SECRETARY-TREASURER. Under the supervision and direction of the Council, he/she shall:

- a. Keep an accurate record of the proceedings of all meetings of the Council, and within ten



- (10) days after each meeting forward copies thereof to all members of the Council and the office of Lions Clubs International as well as posting it on the MD40 website;
- b. Assist the Council in conducting the business of the Districts, and perform such other duties as are specified or implied in the Constitution and By Laws, or as may be assigned to him/her from time to time by the Council;
  - c. In coordination with the Council Chair, submit a budget at the first Council meeting for discussion and approval by the voting members of the Council. The budget will be presented at each subsequent Council Meeting. Receive and give proper receipts for all per capita taxes required to be paid over to him/her by the District Cabinet Secretary-Treasurers, deposit the same in a bank or banks designated by the Council, and disburse the same under the supervision and control of the Council by checks drawn against said deposits signed by himself/herself and countersigned by the Council chairperson or other duly authorized Past District Governor;
  - d. Keep accurate books and records of accounts and minutes of all Council meetings, and permit inspection of the same by any member of the Council or any Club in the Multiple District (or any duly authorized agent of either) at any reasonable time for any proper purpose; provide annual financial report as specified in Article IV Section 9 of this Constitution; and
  - e. If deemed necessary by the Council, secure bond for the faithful performance of his/her duties in such sum and with such sureties as may be required by the Council.

SECTION 3. COUNCIL. It shall:

- a. Make all contracts and approve all bills relating to Multiple District Convention administrative expenses;
- b. Designate a depository for Multiple District funds;
- c. If deemed necessary, determine the amount of surety bond for the Council Secretary-Treasurer, and approve the surety company issuing said bond;
- d. Receive financial reports, semiannually or more frequently, from the Council Secretary-Treasurer, if necessary, and provide for a comprehensive report at the end of the fiscal year of the books and accounts of the Council Secretary-Treasurer; and
- e. Give prior approval to any officer, agent or committee to obligate funds before such amount is incurred.

ARTICLE III. COMMITTEES

SECTION 1. The Credentials Committee of the Multiple District Convention shall be composed of the current District Governors and Cabinet Secretary-Treasurers. The Chairperson of this committee shall be the Council Chairperson. At District Conventions, the District Governor, as Chair-person, his/her Cabinet Secretary-Treasurer and two (2) other non-officers of the District shall serve as the Credentials Committee. Each such Credentials Committee shall have the powers and perform the duties set forth in ROBERT'S RULES OF ORDER NEWLY REVISED.

SECTION 2. Sixty (60) days or more before the Convention, the Council shall appoint the Chairperson of, and fill any vacancies occurring in the following Multiple District Convention Committees: Resolutions, Nominations, Elections, Constitution and By Laws, Rules and

International Convention. Each District shall have at least one representative on each such committee. These committees shall perform such duties as the Council shall designate.

#### ARTICLE IV. RULES FOR CONVENTION PROCEDURE

SECTION 1. The Council shall arrange the order of Business for the Multiple District Convention, and the same shall be the order of the day for all sessions.

SECTION 2. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Constitution and By-Laws, or in the Rules or Procedure adopted for a meeting all questions of Order and Procedure in any Multiple District or District meeting or convention, any meeting of the Council, District Cabinet, Region, Zone or member Club or of any group or committee of any one of them shall be determined by ROBERT'S RULES OF ORDER NEWLY REVISED.

#### ARTICLE V. NOMINATION & ENDORSEMENT: INTERNATIONAL DIRECTOR & 2ND VICE PRESIDENT NOMINEES

SECTION 1. Subject to the provisions of the International Constitution and By-Laws, any member of a Lions Club in the Multiple District seeking endorsement of conventions of his/her District and Multiple District as a candidate for the office of International Director or Second Vice-President shall:

- a. Deliver (by mail or in person) written Notice of Intention to seek such endorsement to the District Governor of his/her District, and the Council Secretary-Treasurer no less than sixty (60) days prior to the convening date of the convention (District or Multiple) at which such question of endorsement is to be voted upon; and
- b. Deliver with said Notice of Intention evidence of fulfillment of the qualifications for such office set forth in the International Constitution and By-Laws.

SECTION 2. Each Notice of Intention so delivered shall be transmitted forthwith by the District Governor and/or the Cabinet Secretary-Treasurer, as the case may be, to the Council, which shall review and perfect the same by obtaining from each prospective candidate any additional evidence of such intention and qualifications as may be necessary under the International Constitution and By-Laws, and shall place in nomination at the respective Convention the name of each such prospective candidate who has fulfilled said procedural and constitutional requirements.

SECTION 3. Each such nominee for endorsement shall be entitled to one seconding speech of no more than three (3) minutes duration.

SECTION 4. The vote on the question of endorsement shall be by secret ballot. To be elected a candidate shall receive fifty (50) per cent plus one vote of the registered and certified delegates at the convention. This means that a registered and certified delegate who does not vote is counted in determining the number of votes required to be elected. In the event of a tie vote, or failure of

one nominee to receive the required majority on any ballot, balloting shall continue with respect to the two nominees only who received the largest number of votes on the previous ballot until one receives the required majority of the votes.

SECTION 5. Certification of endorsement by the Multiple District Convention shall be made in writing to the International Office by the Multiple District officials designated, and in accordance with the requirements therefor set forth, in the International Constitution and By-Laws.

SECTION 6. No endorsement of any candidacy of any member of a Lions Club in the Multiple District shall be valid unless and until the provisions of this ARTICLE VI have been met.

#### ARTICLE VI. FISCAL YEAR

SECTION 1. The fiscal year of this Multiple District and each District shall be from July 1st through June 30th.

#### ARTICLE VII. AMENDMENTS

SECTION 1. These By-Laws may be amended only at a Multiple District Convention, by resolution reported by the Convention Committee on Constitution and By-Laws and adopted by a majority of the votes cast.

SECTION 2. No amendment shall be so reported or voted upon unless the same shall have been furnished in writing to each Club no less than thirty (30) days prior to the convening date of the annual convention with notice that the same will be voted upon at said convention. A proposed amendment shall be submitted by a Lions Club in good standing in the Multiple District and Lions Club International. The proposed amendment shall be submitted to the Multiple District Constitution and By-Laws Chairperson ninety (90) days in advance of the opening date of the Multiple District Convention that it is to be voted upon. The Chairperson will review for accuracy and submit to all Lions Clubs Presidents in the Multiple District no less than thirty (30) days prior to the opening date of the Multiple District Convention with notice that it will be voted upon. The submitting Lions Club and the Constitution and By-Laws Chairperson must have proof that the above dates were complied with for the proposed amendment to be considered at the convention. Published in the Lions Roar or any other Multiple District 40 Lions document will be considered advance notice only if it meets the thirty (30) day advance notice. The Multiple District Constitution and By-Laws Chairperson is responsible to verify and maintain proof that the publications are mailed in a timely manner to meet the thirty (30) day advance notice. If these communications cannot meet this advance notice then a separate notice shall be sent to each Lions Club President that does meet the advance notice requirement.

SECTION 3. Each amendment shall take effect at the close of the convention at which adopted unless otherwise specified in the amendment.

#### ARTICLE VIII. EFFECTIVE DATE

These By-Laws will become effective upon the adjournment of the 2019 Multiple District Convention or 1 July 2019, whichever date comes first.